
1 

CITY OF HOPEWELL 
Hopewell, Virginia 23860 

CITY COUNCIL 
Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor, Ward #7 

Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor, Ward #4 
Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Councilor, Ward #1 

Arlene Holloway, Councilor, Ward #2 
Anthony J. Zevgolis, Councilor, Ward #3 
K. Wayne Walton, Councilor, Ward #5 
Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor, Ward #6 

Mark A. Haley, City Manager 
Stefan M. Calos, City Attorney 

AGENDA 

PHONE: 541-2249 
FAX: 541-2248 

e-mail: info@hopewellva.gov 
www.hopewellva.gov 

 Date: April 11, 2017 MUNICIPAL BUILDING TIME: Closed Meeting    6:30 p.m. 

 Regular Meeting  7:30 p.m. 

OPEN MEETING 

6:30 p.m. Call to order, roll call, and welcome to visitors. 

MOTION: To amend/adopt agenda. 

MOTION: To go into closed meeting for (1) discussion of the appointment or resignation of  

public officers (city councilor, constitutional officer) and specific appointees of city 

council (city clerk, finance committee), and (2) consultation with legal counsel 

employed or retained by city council related thereto and regarding specific legal 

matters (the Beacon) requiring the provision of legal advice by such counsel, in 

accordance with Virginia Code sections 2.2-3711 (A) (1) and (7), respectively. 

Roll Call 

CLOSED MEETING 

RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO VIRGINIA CODE § 2.2-3712 (D): WERE ONLY PUBLIC 

BUSINESS MATTERS (I) LAWFULLY EXEMPTED FROM OPEN-MEETING REQUIREMENTS AND 

(II) IDENTIFIED IN THE CLOSED-MEETING MOTION DISCUSSED IN CLOSED MEETING? 

Roll Call 

WORK SESSIONS 

WS-1 Economic Development Authority 

WS-2 Hopewell Redevelopment and Housing Authority 

mailto:info@hopewellva.gov
http://www.hopewellva.gov/


2 

REGULAR MEETING 

7:30 p.m. Call to order, roll call, and welcome to visitors. 

Prayer by Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the 

Flag of the United States of America. 

Consent Agenda 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by Council and will be 

approved or received by one motion in the form listed. Items may be removed from the Consent 

Agenda for discussion under the regular agenda at the request of any Councilor. (Rule 304) 

C-1 Minutes:  None 

C-2 Pending List:  None 

C-3 Routine Approval of Work Sessions: Council Finance Committee meeting April 

13, 2017; Budget Work Session April 18, 2017 

C-4 Personnel Change Report & Financial Report: None 

C-4 Ordinances on Second & Final Reading: None 

C-5 Routine Grant Approval: None 

C-6 Public Hearing Announcement: April 18, 2017 – Finance – City Manager 

Adjusted Budget; April 25, 2017 – Development – Requests to amend the Zoning 

Ordinance; Finance – FY 2018 School Division Budget 

C-7 Information for Council Review:  Hopewell Water Renewal minutes for January 

30, 2017 

C-8 Resolutions/Proclamations/Presentations: Condolence Proclamation for Juanita 

Coles Chambers; Fair Housing Act proclamation; Appomattox Regional Library 

System 10th Anniversary Invitation 

Public Hearings 
Addressing Council  – Each person addressing the Council shall step to the microphone, give name and 

address and limit comments to five (5) minutes or less. No person shall be permitted to address Council a 

second time until all others have been heard once and no one shall speak more than twice on any subject 

in any one meeting. All remarks shall be addressed to Council as a body and not to any member thereof. 

No person other than the Council and the person having the floor shall enter into any discussion either 

directly or through a member of the Council without permission of the Mayor. No question shall be asked 

a Council member (including Administration) except through the presiding officer. (Rule 405) 

PH-1 To consider citizen comments regarding real property tax levy increase of $.04 per $100 

(from $1.13 to $1.17) for Fiscal Year 2018. 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval. 

Motion: To approve the real property tax levy increase of $0.04 per $100 for Fiscal 

Year 2018. 

Roll Call 



 

3 

 

Communications from Citizens 

A Communications from Citizens period, limited in total time to 30 minutes, shall be part of the 

Order of Business at each regular Council meeting. Each speaker will be limited to three (3) 

minutes. No citizen will be permitted to speak on any item scheduled for consideration on the 

regular agenda of the meeting. (Rule 405)    

 

Regular Business 

Reports of City Manager: 

 

R-1 Approval of Fiscal Year 2017 General Fund/Finance Budget appropriation for 

additional audit, consulting, and other professional service costs. 

 

ISSUE:  Current FY 2017 General Fund Revised Budget is insufficient to cover 

estimated audit, consulting, and other professional service costs to be incurred through 

June 30, 2017.   

 

 RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends approval. 

  

 MOTION:  To appropriate an additional $250,000 to supplement Fiscal Year 2017 

budget. 

  

 Roll Call 

 

R-2 Presentation regarding the classification and compensation study results by  

Ann Antonsen of Springsted Incorporated. 

 

R-3  Presentation of Capital Improvements Budget and financial requests from  

 outside agencies by City Manager. 

 

R-4 Approval of health care rates for employees and retirees, and other 

 recommendations proposed by OneDigital. 

 

ISSUE: The City currently uses The Local Choice (TLC) as its health care provider.  

The OneDigital consultant presented the new TLC rates and its recommendations to 

Council on April 4, 2017. 

 

 RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval. 

  

 MOTION:  To approve the new rate schedules and recommendations of OneDigital 

regarding the City’s health insurance program. 

  

 Roll Call 

 

R-5 Update on 2017 real estate tax assessments by the Interim Finance Director. 

 

 



4 

Reports of the City Attorney: 

Reports of the City Clerk: 

Accepting Talent Bank Resumes (TBRs) for boards and commissions 

Reports of City Council: 

Committees 

Individual Councilors  

Citizen/Councilor Requests 

Other Council Communications 

Adjournment 



Work 

Session 

Economic Development Authority - no documents

Hopewell Redevelopment and Housing Authority - no documents



 

CONSENT 

AGENDA 
 





























































PROCLAMATIONS 

§ 

RESOLUTIONS 

§ 

PRESENTATIONS 



Proclamation 
O F F I C E  O F  MA Y O R  J A C K I E  M .  S H O R N A K  

City of Hopewell, Virginia 

In Memory of 

Juanita Coles  Chambers 
Whereas,  

it is with deepest sympathy that I join with the citizens of the City of Hopewell, Virginia
and its City Council in mourning the loss of Juanita Coles Chambers. 

Whereas, Mrs. Chambers graduated from Carter G. Woodson School in 1949 as valedictorian at
age 16. She received her Bachelor's and Master's degrees from Virginia State University. 
In 1953, she came to teach in Hopewell. She taught at Carter G. Woodson, James E. 
Mallonee Junior High School and the Harry E. James Occupational Work Center. She 
worked as principal of Harry E. James from 1972 to 1986. Mrs. Chambers later served 
as supervisor of secondary education in Hopewell until her retirement in 1988. In 1989, 
she was appointed to the School Board and at one time served as its Vice Chair. She also 
served as a member of the Appomattox Regional Governor's School Board. In 2005, she 
established the Juanita and Wilson Chambers Scholarship. She retired again in 2010 
after 57 years of loyal service in education. 

Whereas, Her many honors include the NAACP Woman of the Year Award for the City of
Hopewell in 1990, and the African American Distinguished Service Award from the 
Hopewell School Board in 2003. In April 2011 Mrs. Chambers was honored with a 
dedication ceremony re-naming the multipurpose room of the renovated Carter G. 
Woodson Middle School, the "Juanita Coles Chambers Multipurpose Room.” 

Whereas, She was the second eldest of five children born to the late Rufus Dennis Coles and
Florence Briggs Coles. At an early age, she accepted Christ and joined Friendship 
Baptist Church. On July 19, 1958, she married Wilson Douglas Chambers Jr. They 
remained married for 46 years until his death in 2004. No children were born of this 
union. Mrs. Chambers leaves to cherish her memory: one sister, Bernice C. Whitsett; 
three nieces, Wanda Lee Jiggetts, Karen D. Maynard (Jerry), and Revenda L. 
Bannerman (Roosevelt); five nephews, Vincent A. Lee, Jr., John J. Dennis, Jr. (Jewel), 
Rufus Coles (Maria), Rodney E. Coles Sr., (Joan), and David E. Coles Sr.,; her many 
grand-nieces and nephews; faithful friends, Avon L. Miles, Sr. and Gloria Bailey; and a 
host of other relatives and friends. 

Whereas,  
there are no words to ease the pain of such a devastating loss. We share a poem by Sue
Walkinshaw reads in small part: “feel the warmth upon my face as I enter the land of 
God's good grace. Friends and loved ones gone before, waiting here beyond the 
door…Libraries stacked with books galore, history science and many more…”  

NOW, THEREFORE, I Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor of the City of Hopewell, Virginia, do hereby offer sincere
condolences to the family and friends of Juanita Coles Chambers. I humbly request that all citizens join with me in 
extending our prayers to the family and friends of Mrs. Chambers during this time of bereavement. 

N WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed 
 the Great Seal of the City of Hopewell in the Commonwealth of Virginia 
 this 5th day of April 2017. 

 Jackie M. Shornak 
        Mayor of the City of Hopewell 

I 



Proclamation 

OFFICE OF MAYOR JACKIE M.  SHORNAK  

Declaring April Fair Housing Month 

Whereas,  
 In 1968, President Lyndon Baines Johnson, signed the Fair Housing Act into law.
This landmark legislation sought to protect individuals' ability to own or rent property 
free from discrimination. In 1988, Virginia solidified its commitment to this basic 
right by passing the Virginia Fair Housing Amendment Act, which prohibits 
discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex, national origin, family status or 
disability. 

Whereas,  
 These acts were conceived with a noble goal in mind: affording all Americans the
opportunity to pursue their American Dream and seek the housing of their choice. 
Hopewell truly knows the meaning of diversity and understands that our differences 
make us stronger, not weaker.  

Whereas,  
 Each year, the month of April is dedicated to reaffirming our commitment to equality
of opportunity in the housing industry.  

Whereas,  
 At this time, I encourage all citizens of Hopewell to support fair housing practices so
we can build an even brighter future. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Hopewell proclaim the month of 
April as Fair Housing Month and urge the citizens of Hopewell to continue to work together to support fair 
housing practices within our community. 

N WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be 
affixed the Great Seal of the City of Hopewell, in the Commonwealth of 
Virginia, this ____ day of April, 2017. 

Jackie M. Shornak 
Mayor of the City of Hopewell 

I 



The Board of Trustees of the Appoma�ox Regional Library System invite you to save the date: 

Saturday, April 22, 2017 

You are invited to celebrate the 10th Anniversary of the Opening of the 

Hopewell Library. 

Fes�vi�es begin at 10 a.m. with a Welcome and Remarks 

Family ac�vi�es,  History Program with Jeanie Langford,  Music by “The Brass Quintet” of the 392d Army Band 

Refreshments sponsored by the Hopewell/Prince George Friends of the Library 

For more informa�on, please email bmanning@arls.org or call 804-458-6329 extension 2005. 



PH-1 

Public Hearing 



CITY OF HOPEWELL 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

Pursuant to Virginia Code § 58.1-3007, the City Council of the City of Hopewell will hold a Public Hearing 

on Tuesday, April 11, 2017, at 7:30 p.m. in the City Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 300 N. Main 

St., Hopewell, Virginia. 

The purpose of the Public Hearing is to receive public comments regarding: 

PROPOSED REAL PROPERTY TAX LEVY INCREASE 

The Hopewell City Manager recommends an increase to the real property tax rate of $1.17 per $100 of 

assessed value. The rate would be $0.04 per $100, or 3.5 percent.  

TAX RATES 
 Proposed 

 2016 2017 
Real Estate $  1.13 $  1.17 
Personal Property $  3.50 $  3.50 
Business Personal Property $  3.50 $  3.50 
Machinery & Tools $  3.05 $  3.05 

For additional information contact: Mark Haley, Hopewell City Manager, 541-2243. 

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION EMPLOYER 



REGULAR 

BUSINESS 

REPORTS OF 

THE CITY 

MANAGER 



R-1 



____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Mayor, Jackie M. Shornak Ward #7    □ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2  
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4   □ □ Councilor Anthony Zevgolis, Ward #3 
□ □ Councilor Christina Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5  

     □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
       

  
  

 

 

 
 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  
CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  

 √  None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      

 √  Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

 Approve and File  
 √  Take Appropriate Action  

Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
    
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Approval of $250,000 Supplemental Appropriation 
from Unassigned Fund Balance and $73,000 Budget Transfer of Finance Department line 
items to Increase FY 2017 General Fund/Finance Budget for Additional Audit, Consulting 
and Other Professional Service Costs to be incurred through June 30, 2017 
 
ISSUE: Current FY 2017 General Fund Revised Budget is insufficient to cover estimated 
audit, consulting and other professional service costs to be incurred through June 30, 2017 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve Supplemental FY 2017 General Fund Budget Resolution 
 
TIMING: Additional General Fund/Finance funding is needed immediately in April 2017 
 
BACKGROUND: Adopted FY 2017 General Fund/Finance Budget doesn’t reflect funding 
levels based on current spending trends 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Net Increase in FY 2017 General Fund/Finance Budget by $250,000 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: Supplemental FY 2017 General Fund Budget Resolution   
 
STAFF: Lance W. Wolff, Interim Director of Finance  
 
SUMMARY: FY 2017 General Fund/Finance Budget shortfall is expected based on current 
spending trends for audit, consulting and other professional services through June 30, 2017 
  
 

 

 



R-2 





City of Hopewell, Virginia 
Classification and Compensation Study 

Ann Antonsen, Vice President

April 11, 2017



2

Objectives
• Review and evaluate the City's current classification and

compensation program
• Review and revise job descriptions
• Determine current relationship relative to the labor market
• Evaluate the internal ranking of all positions
• Develop a compensation system
• Review and develop administrative guidelines for

implementation and maintenance



3

Methodology

• Discussions with the City Manager and Department Heads 
• Employee informational meetings
• Collection of data – Position Analysis Questionnaires
• Review and revision of descriptions
• Evaluate positions based on job requirements
• Obtain market salary and benefits information
• Development of compensation plan
• Assignment of positions to pay grades
• Development of implementation options



4

Salary Survey
Benchmark Communities - Municipalities

• City of Colonial Heights*
• City of Danville*
• City of Emporia*
• City of Lynchburg
• City of Newport News
• City of Norfolk*
• City of Petersburg*

• City of Richmond*
• City of Suffolk*
• Chesterfield County
• Dinwiddie County*
• New Kent County
• Prince George County*
• Surry County*

*Reflects communities who responded to the survey



5

Salary Survey

• 69 positions included in survey
• Comparison of current salaries to market salary ranges

– 2.11% below average minimum salaries
– 8.59% below average midpoint salaries
– 13.86% below average maximum salaries

• Internal pay relationship inequities exist within the City



6

Job Evaluation

Training and Ability Experience Required

Level of Work Human Relations Skills

Physical Demands Working Conditions

Independence of Actions Impact on End Results 

Supervision Exercised

Systematic Analysis and Factor Evaluation (SAFE®) System
Job Evaluation Factors



7

Pay Philosophy

• Provide fair and equitable compensation to employees
• Balance external market and internal equity
• Maintain competitive pay structure with consideration

of City’s fiscal resources
• Performance based component for individual employee

compensation
• Develop an understandable compensation program



Salary Curve

8

y = 112.49x + 24043
R² = 0.9654

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 900 1000

Su
rv

ey
  M

id
-P

oi
nt

 (y
)

SAFE Total Points (x)

City of Hopewell, Virginia
Compensation Survey



Development of Compensation Plan

The Proposed Pay Scale:
– Developed utilizing the respondents’ survey data and is

consistent with the other jurisdictions
– Is an open range system that provides a minimum, midpoint

and maximum salary consistent with the survey responses
– Contains thirty-four (34) pay grades with a 6% separation

between grades and a minimum to maximum spread of
65% 

– Complete survey data can be found in Appendix B

9



Proposed Pay Scale

10

Grade Min Mid Max
12 20,754.72 27,500.00 34,245.28
13 22,000.00 29,150.00 36,300.00
14 23,320.00 30,899.00 38,478.00
15 24,719.20 32,752.94 40,786.68
16 26,202.35 34,718.12 43,233.88
17 27,774.49 36,801.20 45,827.91
18 29,440.96 39,009.28 48,577.59
19 31,207.42 41,349.83 51,492.24
20 33,079.87 43,830.82 54,581.78
21 35,064.66 46,460.67 57,856.69
22 37,168.54 49,248.31 61,328.09
23 39,398.65 52,203.21 65,007.77
24 41,762.57 55,335.40 68,908.24
25 44,268.32 58,655.53 73,042.73
26 46,924.42 62,174.86 77,425.30
27 49,739.89 65,905.35 82,070.81
28 52,724.28 69,859.67 86,995.06

Salary Range
Grade Min Mid Max

29 55,887.74 74,051.25 92,214.77
30 59,241.00 78,494.33 97,747.65
31 62,795.46 83,203.99 103,612.51
32 66,563.19 88,196.23 109,829.26
33 70,556.98 93,488.00 116,419.02
34 74,790.40 99,097.28 123,404.16
35 79,277.82 105,043.12 130,808.41
36 84,034.49 111,345.70 138,656.91
37 89,076.56 118,026.44 146,976.33
38 94,421.16 125,108.03 155,794.91
39 100,086.43 132,614.51 165,142.60
40 106,091.61 140,571.38 175,051.16
41 112,457.11 149,005.67 185,554.23
42 119,204.53 157,946.01 196,687.48
43 126,356.81 167,422.77 208,488.73
44 133,938.21 177,468.13 220,998.05
45 141,974.51 188,116.22 234,257.94

Salary Range



11

Implementation Options

Option 1 – Move to Minimum of the Recommended Pay 
Grade
• 21% of the City’s employees are paid below the minimum of

the proposed salary ranges
• Annual cost is $162,646 which is equivalent to 0.99% of the

City’s approximate $16.4 million annual payroll
• Increases market comparability



12

Implementation Options (cont.)

Option 2 – Move to Minimum or 2% Increase Whichever is 
Greater
• Provides minimum level of funding to address compression

issues
• 100% of employees are impacted
• Annual cost is $421,946, which is equivalent to 2.57% of the

City’s approximate $16.4 million annual payroll
• Includes Adjustments to Minimum
• Increases market comparability



13

Implementation Options (cont.)

Option 3 – Years of service Adjustment 
• Addresses salary compression issues
• 100% of employees are impacted
• Annual cost is $888,518 which is equivalent to 5.41% of the

City’s approximate $16.4 million annual payroll
• Includes Adjustments to Minimum
• Provides 0.5% increase per year of service; placing

employees within grade



Recommendations
• Approve the proposed “Open Range” salary schedule
• Approve the position placement, which allows for establishment of

internal equity among all City positions
• Approve Implementation Option 3 to establish more equitable

compensation levels for all employees, addresses compression
issues, and brings those employees that are below the market up
to market minimums. If implementation is not possible in one (1)
year, we would recommend considering phasing in Option 3 over
a two (2) to three (3) year period.

• Provide support for ongoing administration of the program via a
system of market adjustments and performance based merit
increases awarded on the anniversary date of the employees hire
or promotion

14



15

On-going Administration

Annual Adjustments
• Establish guidelines for base adjustments

e.g., Comparable organizations, other economic indicators
• Adjust pay ranges and wages of employees
• Adjustments that recognize individual employee performance



16

The City’s Fringe Benefits
Holiday Leave Above the survey average of 12 days

Annual and 
Sick Leave

Consistent with the survey averages as compared to the respondents who 
offer PTO for most years of service; Below the survey average for 6 months 
and 14 - 20 or more years of service

Pension and 
Retirement Consistent with survey average including the provision of a death benefit

Life Insurance Consistent with the survey respondents in providing this benefit and above 
the survey average for the amount contributed

Health 
Insurance

Consistent with survey respondents in offering insurance to eligible 
employees and offering different types of coverage; Inconsistent with 
respondents by not requiring 100% full time employee participation and not 
compensating employees who choose not to participate 

Deferred 
Compensation

Consistent with survey respondents in providing employees access to a 
plan and not contributing to the plan



17

Conclusions

Adoption of the report’s recommendations will result in:
• Fair and equitable compensation to employees in a

competitive and changing labor market
• Improved opportunities to reduce turnover among current

employees and to recruit quality replacements, when needed
• Compensation that addresses internal equity and external

market competitiveness
• Establishing a market position that is fiscally responsible with

public resources
• Consistent administration of pay policies and procedures

among all City staff



R-3 



R-4 



CITY OF HOPEWELL

Medical Renewal FY 17/18

April 4, 2017

Presented by:
Mary Jones, Senior Consultant at 
OneDigitial



____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Y N  Y N  
□ □ Mayor, Jackie M. Shornak Ward #7   □ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2  
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4  □ □ Councilor Anthony Zevgolis, Ward #3 
□ □ Councilor Christina Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 

□ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  
CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 
Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment 
None (Does not apply) 

Order of Business: 
Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing         
Presentation-Boards/Commissions 
Unfinished Business           
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees 

Action: 
Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   Regular Business 

ISSUE:  Council to approve the 2017 TLC health care rates and other recommendations as 
proposed by the OneDigital consultation during the April 4, 2017 council meeting, to include 
the City discontinuing to pay the health care for the spouses of retirees.  

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the 2017 TLC healthcare rates and other 
recommendations as presented by the One Digital consultant at the April 4, 2017 council 
meeting, including the recommendation for the City to discontinue paying healthcare for 
spouses of retirees. 

BACKGROUND: The City currently uses The Local Choice, (TLC) as its health care 
provider. Every year the City offers an Open Enrollment period to allow employees the 
opportunity to update or change their health care plans.  The OneDigital consultant 
presented to Council on April 4, 2017; however, the presentation was made at a special 
meeting and not a regular council meeting, therefore, could not be voted on.  Additionally, 
the OneDigital consultant made other recommendations to include having the city 
discontinue paying healthcare rates for the spouses of retirees.   

FISCAL IMPACT:     3.8% 

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: OneDigital presentation presented to Council on April 4, 2017 

STAFF:   Renia Coles, Human Resources Director 



____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Mayor, Jackie M. Shornak Ward #7    □ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2  
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4   □ □ Councilor Anthony Zevgolis, Ward #3 
□ □ Councilor Christina Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5  

     □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
       

  
  

 

 

SUMMARY: Council to approve the 2017 TLC healthcare rates and other recommendations 
as presented by One Digital at the April 4, 2017 council meeting, including the 
recommendation for the City to discontinue paying healthcare rates for spouses of retirees. 
  
 

 



Renewal Summary and Market

• The Local Choice(TLC) renewal is calling for a 3.8% increase to current for the
active employees and pre-Medicare eligible retirees; Medicare eligible retiree
Medicare supplement rates are remaining flat

– Moved to TLC July 1, 2015 resulting in a 13.2% average decrease to the active employees
– July 1, 2016 – June 30, 2017 TLC renewal resulted in a 0% increase to the active employees

• OneDigital's analysis of the claims experience suggests that the TLC renewal is fair

• Reviewed the SB 364 Local Option which is an option that would closely mimic the
benefit plan options available to State employees

– This option is coming in 24.3% higher than the TLC renewal
– Allows for two plan options

• Basic $300 deductible  and HDHP
– Pricing doesn’t included enhanced dental, vision, hearing and out-of-network benefits

that are included with The Local Choice program.
• Routine vision & hearing option available for $20-$54 on the basic plan.  Not available on the

HDHP
• 4 EAP visits, diagnostic and preventive dental services included on both plans
• Enhanced dental buy-up available for $31-84 on both plans

2



3

Recommendation

• Continue with TLC offering the three current plan options to active employees and 
pre-Medicare eligible retirees

– HDHP 
– Key Advantage 250 Plan
– Key Advantage Expanded Plan

• Contribution strategy 
– Shift contribution strategy so that the City is giving the same amount regardless if you 

participate in the Key Advantage 250 or Key Advantage Expanded plan.  
• Employees will still have the option to participate in the Key Advantage Expanded plan; however, 

they will pay a higher premium to do so

– Keep the same contribution percentages on the HDHP plan as current 
• Continue contributions to the Health Savings Accounts of $174 monthly 

– These adjustments would result in the following for the employees:
• Average increase to the employees enrolled on the HDHP or KA 250 of 3%  
• Average increase to the active employees enrolled in the KA Expanded of 8.4%

3



4

HDHP Emp - PER PP Emp - MONTH City - MONTH Total Premium
EE ONLY $34.28 $68.55 $360.45 $429.00
EE + SPOUSE $97.18 $194.35 $599.65 $794.00
EE + CHILD $80.28 $160.55 $633.45 $794.00
EE + CHILDREN $80.28 $160.55 $997.45 $1,158.00
EE + FAMILY $160.42 $320.84 $837.16 $1,158.00

Key Advantage 250 Emp - PER PP Emp - MONTH City - MONTH Total Premium
EE ONLY $53.64 $107.27 $489.73 $597.00
EE + SPOUSE $145.88 $291.75 $812.25 $1,104.00
EE + CHILD $116.70 $233.40 $870.60 $1,104.00
EE + CHILDREN $116.70 $233.40 $1,378.60 $1,612.00
EE + FAMILY $247.08 $494.16 $1,117.84 $1,612.00

Key Advantage Expanded Emp - PER PP Emp - MONTH City - MONTH Total Premium
EE ONLY $72.77 $145.53 $504.47 $650.00
EE + SPOUSE $205.12 $410.24 $792.76 $1,203.00
EE + CHILD $160.25 $320.50 $882.50 $1,203.00
EE + CHILDREN $160.25 $320.50 $1,434.50 $1,755.00
EE + FAMILY $327.43 $654.85 $1,100.15 $1,755.00

Current Rates(FY 16/17)



5

HDHP Emp - PER PP Emp - MONTH City - MONTH Total Premium
EE ONLY $35.63 $71.27 $374.73 $446.00
EE + SPOUSE $100.95 $201.89 $623.11 $825.00
EE + CHILD $83.40 $166.80 $658.20 $825.00
EE + CHILDREN $83.46 $166.93 $1,037.07 $1,204.00
EE + FAMILY $166.80 $333.59 $870.41 $1,204.00

Key Advantage 250 Emp - PER PP Emp - MONTH City - MONTH Total Premium
EE ONLY $50.50 $101.00 $518.00 $619.00
EE + SPOUSE $151.31 $302.62 $842.38 $1,145.00
EE + CHILD $121.04 $242.08 $902.92 $1,145.00
EE + CHILDREN $120.98 $241.95 $1,429.05 $1,671.00
EE + FAMILY $256.11 $512.22 $1,158.78 $1,671.00

Key Advantage Expanded Emp - PER PP Emp - MONTH City - MONTH Total Premium
EE ONLY $79.00 $158.00 $518.00 $676.00
EE + SPOUSE $204.31 $408.62 $842.38 $1,251.00
EE + CHILD $174.04 $348.08 $902.92 $1,251.00
EE + CHILDREN $197.98 $395.95 $1,429.05 $1,825.00
EE + FAMILY $333.11 $666.22 $1,158.78 $1,825.00

Proposed Base Rates (FY 17/18)



• Totally monthly premiums for retirees that are pre-Medicare 
eligible (typically 65) are as follows:

• Totally monthly premium for retirees that are post-Medicare 
Eligible remain at $201 per person per month

Retiree Premiums Effective 7/1/2017



Retiree Benefits



• OneDigital assisted with conducting a benchmark of local 
governments and schools in VA to determine the following:
– How many entities currently have an active retiree class?
– Of those that have an active retiree class:

• How long can retirees remain on the plan?
• Does the entity pay a portion or all of the premiums on behalf of the 

retiree?
• Is the retiree class extended to spouses of retirees?
• Does the entity pay a portion or all of the premiums on behalf of the 

spouse?
• Are reimbursements provided to retirees participating in plans outside of 

the plans offered through the group?

Study

8



• Results of the Study
– 18 local governments and/or schools were included in this study
– 15 entities have an active retiree class
– 15 entities allow retirees to remain on their plans until they become 

eligible for Medicare (typically age 65)
• 5 entities don’t provide contributions to the pre Medicare eligible retirees 

– 13 entities provide access to post Medicare retirees
• 7 entities don’t provide contributions to the post Medicare eligible retirees

Study continued

9



• Results of the Study
– 15 entities allow spouses to have access to coverage through their 

group plans
• 14 entities only allow spouses to have access to their group plans until they 

become eligible for Medicare
• 3 entities make premium contributions toward spouses until they become 

eligible for Medicare
– No entity other than the City of Hopewell allows reimbursement for 

plans obtained outside of the group offered plans.

Study continued

10



• Effective July 1, 2017,  our recommendation to the City is to discontinue 
contributions for the spouses of retirees regardless of whether they are pre or post 
Medicare eligible

• Current policy for spouses:  City currently offers coverage to spouses of retirees 
(with a city contribution) for those that retired BEFORE January 1, 2004

• Proposed change:  Effective July 1, 2017 the City discontinues contributions for the 
spouses of retirees regardless of whether they are pre or post Medicare eligible.

– Currently there are 32 spouses of retirees receiving contributions from the City which is 
approximately savings of $100,000 annually.

– Spouses may remain on the plan but will be responsible for the premiums as of July 1, 
2017.  

Considerations

11



R-5 


	Agenda
	Work Session
	Consent Agenda
	Proclamations/Presentations
	Chambers Proclamation
	Fair Housing Proclamation
	Library invitation
	PH-1
	R-1
	R-2
	R-3
	R-4
	R-5



